
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
November 2, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Rich Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Esq. (Meyers Nave) 
      Michael Celentano, CPA (via telephone) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by Financial Coordinator Tim Lipinski at 6:31 
p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Holmer reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.    
Motion carried 3-0.  Director Schaap abstained from voting because he was absent at the 
November meeting.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the October, 2017 Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: 
 


 1







 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:34 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Items of Interest re FY 2016-17 District Financial 


Audit.  The GM introduced this item.  Auditor Michael Celentano presented selected 
findings from the FY 2016-17 Audit to the Board.  Board questions and discussion 
ensued.  Comments were made by legal counsel Robin Donoghue.  No action was 
taken. 


 
V-B. (7:11 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re 1st Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and 


Capital) Report thru September 30, 2017.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  
Board questions and discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 


 
V-C. (7:27 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-D. (7:33 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Revision of District Policies and Procedures and 


appointment of an ad hoc committee. The GM gave an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder volunteered to serve on an ad hoc committee.  
Director Holmer agreed to help out as well.  Director Robb-Wilder appointed an ad hoc 
committee of two Board members -- herself and Director Holmer -- to work with staff to 
review policies and determine which to revise, checking in with the Board and legal 
counsel as needed.   


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 
 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project 
6. CIP 2017 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Regional Fire Impacts 
9. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:04 p.m.) 


 
1. Director Robb-Wilder announced she would be missing the December meeting 
2. Director Lipinski announced a neighbor association member's opinion regarding permits 


required from SSWD to rebuild 
3. Director Lipinski announced a customer's opinion regarding three hydrants on Woods Lane 


that remain unhooked up to a water supply 
 


 2







 3


 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:07 p.m.) 
 
(None.)  
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:07 p.m.) 
 
1. Fire issues and impact on the River 
2. Guernewood Park Resort 
3. River Lane property 
4. CIP 2017 Phase 1 Notice of Completion 
5. Extension of contract with Auditor Michael Celentano 
6. Capital Improvement Program 
7. Election of Officers 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:11 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:04 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:07 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


December 7, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the November 2, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-21 Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal 


Year Ending June 30, 2017 (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-18, Extending the Contract with Michael 


Celentano, CPA for Audit Services an Additional Two Years to Include FY 2017-
18 and 2018-19 (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action Re Resolution 17-19, Authorizing the General Manager to 


Accept the FY 2017, Phase 1 Capital Improvement Project and to Sign and 
Record a Notice of Completion (Est. time 15 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-20, Adopting the 2018-2024 Capital 


Improvement Program (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Guernewood Park Resort Project (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Election of Board Officers (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 
 
 Subject: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 17-21, ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 Approve Resolution 17-21, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 


2017. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 (Preparation of the FY 16-17 Audit cost $8,000.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


Our FY 2016-17 Audit was conducted by Michael Celentano, CPA, the third audit of a 
three-year contract with Mr. Celentano.  Mr. Celentano appeared by telephone at the 
November meeting to present to and discuss the draft Audit prepared after his October 
site visit.  He will not be at the December meeting; however, the Final Audit contains no 
changes of note from the draft Audit. 
 
As a reminder, the Audit presents the District's financials using a partial accrual method 
of accounting, which differs from the cash presentation staff prepares for the Board on a 
quarterly basis.   
 
Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 17-21, Accepting the Final Audit for the 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017.  
 







Resolution No. 17-21 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE FINAL 


AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 
 


 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District is required to have 
annual audits performed relative to the spending of public funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael Celentano, CPA provides said auditing service and 
is under contract with the District to perform such audits. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of 
the Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the audit as prepared by 
Michael Celentano, CPA for the year ending June 30, 2017, and accepts the 
information contained therein. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors 
of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, 
at a meeting held on December 7, 2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 













































































































































		Item V-A - Res 17-21 Accepting the FY 2016-17 Audit

		Item V-A.1 - RES 17-21 -- Accepting Audit for FYE June 30, 2017

		Item V-A.2 - FY 2016-17 Auditor Internal Controls Letter

		Item V-A.3- FY 2016-17 Audit Governance Letter

		Item V-A.4 - FY 2016-17 Final Audit Report






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: Resolution 17-18, Extending a Contract for Audit Services with Michael Celentano, 
CPA and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign the Letter of Engagement 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 17-18.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


$8,000 for each of two fiscal years.  
 
DISCUSSION: 


Mr. Celentano has been conducting the District's annual audit for the last three years.  At the 
November Board meeting during discussion of his FY 2016-17 findings, he indicated he 
would send a proposal to extend his engagement with the District for two more years, FY 
2017-18 and FY 2018-19.  There did not appear to be any objections to retaining Mr. 
Celentano for two more years. 
 
Staff has reviewed the letter of engagement Mr. Celentano sent and finds it acceptable.  His 
proposed fee of $8,000 each year is the same fee he charged for the FY 2016-17 audit. 
 
It is recommended that the Board approve Resolution 17-18. 
 







Resolution No. 17-18 
 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A CONTRACT FOR AUDIT SERVICES 


WITH MICHAEL CELENTANO, CPA FOR FYE 2018 AND 2019 
 


WHEREAS, pursuant to District Policy 4050.15, “the District Board of Directors shall 
retain an independent auditor to conduct an annual review of District books, records, 
and financial interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 30540 (2), the Board shall retain an auditor 
as an independent contractor to conduct an annual audit of the District’s books, records, 
and financial affairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has evaluated the proposed letter contract of Michael 
Celentano, CPA for audit services for FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19 at the following rates;  
 


FY ending June 30, 2018 not to exceed $8,000 
FY ending June 30, 2019 not to exceed $8,000 


 
 
1. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 


Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the letter contract presented by 
Michael Celentano, CPA dated November 27, 2017, and finds the terms and 
conditions acceptable; and 


 
2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the General Manager is authorized to sign said 


Contract 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on 
December 7, 2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 







      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 

















		Item V-B - Res 17-18 Approving 2-year extension for audit services with Michael Celentano CPA

		$8,000 for each of two fiscal years. 



		Item V-B.1 - RES 17-18 Michael Celentano audit service contract

		Item V-B.2 - Letter of Engagement from Celentano






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 7, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 CIP, 
PHASE 1 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-19 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Fiscal Year (FY) 2017 Capital Improvement Project (CIP), Phase 
1, as substantially complete, and to sign and record a Notice of Completion. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 2017 CIP, which includes replacement of approximately 2200 ft of existing main 
and 17 services on River Rd from Rio Nido to Old River Road near Outlet Drive, is 
substantially complete. The Project Engineers, Coastland Engineering (Coastland), have 
communicated that Piazza Construction satisfactorily completed all elements of the 
project. As such it is appropriate for the Board to approve Resolution 17-19 which 
authorizes the General Manager to accept the Project as substantially complete, and to 
sign and record a Notice of Completion.   
 
At the May 4, 2017 Board meeting, the Board authorized award of the 2017 Capital 
Improvement Project to Piazza Construction. The work has recently been completed 
to the District’s satisfaction. Staff is recommending that the Board accept the 
improvements associated with this project, authorize the release of the Performance 
and Labor and Material bonds, retain the maintenance bond for a period of one year 
and direct the filing of the Notice of Completion. If no issues have been found with 
the improvements one year from acceptance, the Maintenance bond can be released 
without further action.  


The overall expenditures associated with this project have included: 
     Original  Actual 
     Budget   Expenditures 
Construction Contract   $ 663,004.77  $659,679.83 
Construction Contingency  $ 66,300.00   $ 22,445.88 
Totals     $ 729,304.77  $ 682,125.71 
 
As noted above, the project came in $47,179.06 under the approved overall budget. 
 
 







2017 CIP Notice of Completion  2  
December 7, 2017 
 
The work done by Piazza has been good and District customers in the affected areas are 
seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire protection, and more 
consistent water flow.  The completed project will also secure the water supply for the 
Rio Nido area as this aging cast iron pipe was the sole supply to Rio Nido, was very old, 
and subject to catastrophic failure in a location (busy River Road) that would be a 
difficult emergency fix.   
 







2017 CIP Notice of Completion  3  
December 7, 2017 
 
 







 
Resolution No. 17-19 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 


ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, 
PHASE 1, AND TO SIGN AND RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


WHEREAS, at the May 4, 2017 Board meeting, the Board approved an 
overall budget for the 2017 Capital Improvement Project, Phase 1, (“Project”) and 
authorized the award of the construction project to Piazza Construction; and 
 WHEREAS, the project has been inspected and determined to have been 
completed in accordance with the contract requirements; and 
 WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, staff recommends acceptance of the 
project on behalf of the District. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


1. The District hereby accepts the improvements associated with the 2017 
Capital Improvement Project, Phase 1. 


2. Authorizes the General Manager to release the Performance and Labor & 
Material surety posted with this project; and to hold the Maintenance Bond 
for a period of one year from the date of this resolution, at which time the 
General Manager is authorized to release said bond if the improvements 
remain in good condition and there is no issues to be resolved. 


3. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to file a Notice of Completion 
concerning the Project with the Sonoma County Recorder’s Office within ten 
(10) days of the date of this Resolution. 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on December 7, 2017, by the 
following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
           


      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







 
 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
Sweetwater Springs Water District, General Manager 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, CA 95446 


NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 
OWNER: Sweetwater Springs Water District  
 
PROJECT TITLE: 2017 Capital Improvement Project 
 
PROJECT LOCATION & DESCRIPTION: 
 
This project is located along River Road and in sections of Eagle Nest, Rio Nido, Canyon 7, and 
Canyon 2 Road.  
 
The work in general consists of installation of new water mains, replacement of existing water 
services, replacement of existing fire hydrants, asphalt resurfacing, and other items of work. 
 
CONTRACTOR: Piazza Construction, PO Box 573, Penngrove, CA. 94951 
 
COMPLETION/ACCEPTANCE DATE: October 25, 2017/December 19, 2017 
 
NATURE OF OWNER’S INTEREST IS: Owner of the water mains, fire hydrants and public 
side of the water services and meters at the time of the commencement of the work. 
 
Authorized representatives of the District and the Contractor have inspected the work performed 
under this contract and the Project is hereby declared to be completed/accepted on the above 
date. 
 
On the above date, construction of improvements on the Project has been sufficiently completed, 
in accordance with the contract documents and change orders, if any, so that the District can 
utilize the Project for the use for which it was intended. 
 
The Contractor’s one year warranty period begins as of the above-referenced completion date. 
 
The District accepts the project as complete. 
 
This notice is given pursuant to Section 3094 and 3129 of the Civil Code of the State of 
California. 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury of laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 
 
 
_____________________________     __________________ 
Steve Mack         Date 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 





		Item V-C - 2017 CIP NOC

		Item V-C.1 - Res 17-19 2017 CIP NOC






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 7, 2017  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE REVIEW OF THE DISTRICT'S CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM     


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation on the review of the 2017-2024 Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP). adopt Resolution 17-20 approving the revised 2017-2024 CIP,  
and provide direction to staff. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Typically, every year we discuss the District's multi-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
program at the December meeting including a discussion of what has happened in the past 
year and what changes, if any, are needed to the program approved the prior year.  In this 
past year and a half we have changed our minds on our approach to the CIP as we learned 
more of our financial situation and of our capital project needs.  We first decided to build the 
River Road/Old River Road Project in full to replace the aging cast iron pipe that supplies water 
to Rio Nido, and we secured a USDA loan/bond to pay for it.  We slowed down on that 
approach because the USDA bond did not include the grant we were hoping for.  We decided 
to self fund the River Road/Old River Road project, split the project into three parts,  and 
agreed to construct the project over five years, skipping projects in alternate years.  Table 1 
shows the approved CIP from last year's review.    
 
Last Spring we realized our financial situation would be improved if we used the USDA bond.  
The contract for the first phase of the River Road/Old River Road ready for award and we 
downsized our bond request to fund phases 2 and 3.  Construction of phase 1 has been 
completed.  We have restarted the USDA bond process and we should have receipt of the 
bond funds in March 2018.  We expect to advertise phases 2 and 3 in January and award the 
contract in April or May.  We expect receipt of the bond funds in March 2018 so that we will 
have the funds prior to award of contract.  Because we are able to fund construction of phases 
2 and 3 of the River Road/Old River Road Project in 2018 we are able to move up the other 
projects.  Please review Table 2 to see the proposed 2018-2024 CIP.   
 
The revised 2018-2024 CIP is the result of last year's comprehensive staff and Board review of 
the District's capital projects, augmented by the work of the ad hoc CIP Review Subcommittee 
plus updating the timing based on available funding.   Items that the Subcommittee addressed 
included the selection criteria listed below:   
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 







2018-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 2  
December 7, 2017 
 


 


 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 
The projects included in last year's CIP have been rescheduled based on available funds as 
shown in Table 3, Capital Planning Model.  The Model has been updated to include FY17 
actual budget, proposed UAL funding, and the latest CIP costs placed in the year 
occurring.   
 
The proposed FY 18-24 CIP includes construction of approximately $4.3 million of 
scheduled projects and $3.0 million of additional projects.    This proposed CIP a realistic 
construction plan and keeps the District's reserves in good shape.  As always, we review 
the CIP annually and so far have made adjustments to the plan nearly every year.   
 
One big unknown is where the Guernewood Park Resort fits in this plan.  That project may 
need new facilities, may require some kind of cost sharing by the District, and has nothing 
specific included in this CIP.   
 
Resolution 17-20 approves the 2018-2024 CIP which will be added to the District's website 
so our customers can know the general construction schedule of our needed capital 
projects.   
 


 







2018-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 3  
December 7, 2017 
 


 


 
 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2017-2024 CIP Projects by Year 
Approved December 1, 2016 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service  Comments 
2017        


  


Replace approximately 2200 ft of existing 
main and 17 services on River Rd from Rio 
Nido to Old River Road near Outlet Drive. $824,000 $48,471  Completed 


  2017 Total $824,000     


2018        


  Skip Capital Project      


  2018 Total $0     


2019        


  


Replace approximately 2700 ft of existing 
main and 26 services on Old River Rd from 
River Road near Outlet Drive to Morningside 
Drive. $845,000 $32,500  


Remainder of cast iron 
pipe along Old River 
Road, construction in 
summer 2019 


  2019 Total $845,000     


2020        


  Skip Capital Project      


  2020 Total $0     


2021        


  


Replace approximately 1350 ft of existing 
main and 33 services on Foothill Blvd and 
Orchard Rd and tie into new main on Old 
River Road $648,200 $19,642  


 Construction in 
summer 2021 


         


2022        


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement. Serves Monte Rio 
system (1100 services) $200,000 $182    


  2021 Total $200,000 $4,255    


2023        


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf 
of main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297    


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf 
of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692    


  2023 Total $914,000 $18,280    


2024        







2018-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 4  
December 7, 2017 
 


 


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated services 
along Woodland Dr in the main pressure 
zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  2024 Total $675,000     


         


  Total Cost of 2017-2024 Projects $4,106,200     


         


  Other Projects      


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 
associated services along Highland Way, 
Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank $814,300 $17,326    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000 $2,702    


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000 $18,511    


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage 
tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


$4,043    


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000     


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft 
of mainline along Main St. $180,000     


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of 
the existing hydro-pneumatic pump station. $490,000   


wait for Dubrava 
Development? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $2,951,300     


 







2018-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 5  
December 7, 2017 
 


 


 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Proposed 2018-2024 CIP Projects by Year 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service  Comments 
2018        


  


Phase 2 and 3, Old River Road/River 
Road (GV) - replace approximately 
4,600 ft of existing main and 58 
services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill 
Drive and include Orchard Rd and 
Foothill Drive. $1,488,000 $25,655    


  2018 Total $1,488,000     


2019        


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement. Serves Monte Rio 
system (1100 services) $250,000 $227    


  2019 Total $250,000     


2020        


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf 
of main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297    


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf 
of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692    


         


  2020 Total $914,000     


2021        


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278    


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated services 
along Woodland Dr in the main pressure 
zone.   $400,000 $14,815    


  2021 Total $675,000     


2022        


  Skip Capital Project      


2023        







2018-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 6  
December 7, 2017 
 


 


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 
associated services along Highland Way, 
Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank $814,300 $17,326    


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000 $2,702    


  2023 Total $941,300     


2024         


  Skip Capital Project       


          


  Total Cost of 2017-2024 Projects $4,268,300     


          


2025        


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000     


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage 
tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


    


  2025 Total      


         


  Other Projects      


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000     


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft 
of mainline along Main St. $180,000     


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of 
the existing hydro-pneumatic pump station. $490,000   


wait for 
Dubrava 
Development
? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $1,410,000     







2018-2024 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM REVIEW 7  
December 7, 2017 
 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY17 Actual FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Flat Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 270,660 278,779 287,143 295,757 304,630 313,769 323,182 404,300           


5 Total Water Sales 2,035,255 2,103,878 2,206,092 2,272,275 2,340,444 2,410,657 2,482,977 2,557,466


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,305,914 2,382,657 2,493,235 2,568,032 2,645,073 2,724,425 2,806,158 2,961,766


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 138,453 119,600 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,444,368 2,502,257 2,605,938 2,682,687 2,761,720 2,843,104 2,926,909 3,084,631


9 EXPENSES New GM


10 881,298 905,120 923,222 971,687 991,121 1,010,943 1,031,162 1,051,785


11 321,546 342,180 352,445 363,019 373,909 385,127 396,680 408,581


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,202,844 1,247,300 1,275,668 1,334,706 1,365,030 1,396,070 1,427,842 1,460,366


13 Unfunded Liability Increase 60,000 90,000 77,158 73,046 68,934 68,934 68,934 68,934


14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase =


15 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 530,607 515,900 521,059 526,270 531,532 536,848 542,216 547,638


16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,793,451 1,853,200 1,873,885 1,934,022 1,965,497 2,001,852 2,038,993 2,076,939


18 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 41,335 22,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000


19 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 270,660          278,779       287,143         295,757         304,630           313,769          323,182          404,300           


20 Tfers to CIRF 330,000          300,000       340,000         390,000         390,000           460,000          460,000          540,000           


21 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 690,767 618,779 667,143 725,757 734,630 813,769 823,182 984,300


22 SURPLUS/DEFICIT -81,185 8,278 4,910 2,909 1,594 7,484 4,735 3,392


23 Capital Budget
24 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
25 Net Operating Revenues** 248,815 308,278 344,910 392,909 391,594 467,484 464,735 543,392


26 Assessments 768,703 768,703 768,703 768,703 768,703 768,703 768,703 768,703


27 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 270,660          278,779       287,143         295,757         304,630           313,769          323,182          404,300           


28 Capital Interest 12,811            10,000         10,000           10,000           10,000             10,000            10,000            10,000             


29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 680,000          590,000         110,000          370,000          


30 USDA Loan 1,613,000     get loan funds late FY18


31 TOTAL REVENUE 1,980,988 2,978,760 1,410,755 2,057,368 1,474,926 1,669,955 1,936,619 1,726,395


32 State Loan Done


33 Total Debt Payments 1,099,017       1,013,550    1,095,550      1,095,550      1,095,550        948,811          948,811          948,811           


34 CIP 2017-1 CIP 2017-2-3 rpl GSF 2020 CIP No Project 2022 CIP 2023 CIP No Project


35 Annual CIP 839,305 1,488,000 250,000         914,000         -                   675,000          941,300          


36 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


37 TOTAL EXPENSES 1,978,322 2,541,550 1,385,550 2,049,550 1,135,550 1,663,811 1,930,111 988,811


38 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 2,666 437,210 25,205 7,818 339,376 6,144 6,508 737,584


39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


40 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 539,240          1,122,450    1,147,655      565,473         904,850           800,994          437,502          1,175,085        


41 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments (559,777)         108,900       52,105           (530,077)        (190,700)          (147,817)         (511,309)         226,274           


42 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 201,971          352,210       315,205         371,818         379,376           611,144          617,808          777,584           


*  Starting values based on actual FY17 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, 
CDRC 
Increase =


Table 3.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Phased 
2017 CIP, USDA Loan, Incrd UAL Pmt


Total Salary


 







 
Resolution No. 17-20 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE 2018-2024 CAPITAL 


IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 


 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has reviewed the overall Capital 
Improvement Program and has established priorities for the upcoming eight year 
period;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, hereby 
adopts the Revised 2018-2024 Capital Improvement Program attached as Exhibit A 
hereto, effective December 7, 2017. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution supercedes and replaces 
Resolution 16-12.   


     
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a 
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a 
meeting held on December 7, 2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Rich Holmer        
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder  
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie Kenny 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 







Resolution 17-20 Revised 2018-2024 CIP 2 
December 7, 2017 
 


Exhibit A 
 
 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
 
 


Capital Improvement Program 
2018-2024 


 
Revised December 7, 2017 


 
Board of Directors 
Sukey Robb-Wilder 


Rich Holmer 
Tim Lipinski  


Gaylord Schaap  
Pip Marquez de la Plata 


 
General Manager 


Steve Mack 







Resolution 17-20 Revised 2018-2024 CIP 3 
December 7, 2017 
 


 
2018-2024 Sweetwater Springs Water District Capital 


Improvement Program 
December 7, 2017 


 
Capital improvements are an important element of the District’s work effort.  
The District has an aging infrastructure, an unacceptable amount of 
unaccounted for water and District staff spend too much time reacting to leaks 
in the distribution system.  Table 1. 2017-2024 Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) lists needed District projects by year and includes estimated costs.  The 
ranking criteria for the priority of capital projects are: 
 


 Improved water quality  
 Water losses  
 Potential Liability    


 Age of Pipe 
 Pipe Material 
 Terrain  
 Difficulty of Repair/Maintenance  


 Storage and pressure zone requirements  
 Costs per service  


 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2018-2024 CIP Projects by Year 


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost Cost/Service Comments 
2018       


  


Phase 2 and 3, Old River Road/River 
Road (GV) - replace approximately 
4,600 ft of existing main and 58 
services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill 
Drive and include Orchard Rd and 
Foothill Drive. $1,488,000 $25,655   


  2018 Total $1,488,000    


2019       


  


Monte Rio Treatment Plant Green Sand 
Filter Replacement. Serves Monte Rio 
system (1100 services) $250,000 $227   


  2019 Total $250,000    


2020       


  


Park Ave. (GV) replace approximately 2900 lf 
of main line on Park Ave. and McLane, 37 
services.  Loop two deadend lines. 
Replace/repair Park Ave. Tank $788,000 $21,297   







Resolution 17-20 Revised 2018-2024 CIP 4 
December 7, 2017 
 


  
Cherry St. (GV) replace approximately 440 lf 
of main line, 13 services.   $126,000 $9,692   


        


  2020 Total $914,000    


2021       


  


Wright Drive main pressure zone. – (GV) 
Replace approximately 1,120 ft of existing 
mainline and 18 associated services along 
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln.   $275,000 $15,278   


  


Woodland Drive – mainline replacement. 
(GV) Replace approximately 1,900 ft of 
existing mainline and 27 associated services 
along Woodland Dr in the main pressure 
zone.   $400,000 $14,815   


  2021 Total $675,000    


2022       


  Skip Capital Project     


2023       


  


Schoeneman pressure zone- main line 
replacement. (GV)    Replace approximately 
3,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 
associated services along Highland Way, 
Sunset Ave, Woodland Dr, Laurel Way and 
Morningside Drive.  (requires completion of 
Schoeneman Tank $814,300 $17,326   


  


Schoeneman Tank– Replace the existing 
10,000 gallon tank with a 30,000 gallon 
storage tank.  2005 cost estimate $127,000 $2,702   


  2023 Total $941,300    


2024        


  Skip Capital Project      


         


  Total Cost of 2017-2024 Projects $4,268,300    


         


2025       


  


Wright Drive upper pressure zone. – (GV)    
Replace approximately 3,280 ft of existing 
mainline and 47 associated services along 
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. (requires 
completion of Natoma Tank and includes 
Edgehill Booster) $870,000    


  


Natoma Tank – Replace the existing 10,000 
gallon storage tank with a 30,000 storage 
tank.   2005 cost estimate 


$190,000 


   


  2025 Total     


        







Resolution 17-20 Revised 2018-2024 CIP 5 
December 7, 2017 
 
  Other Projects     


  
Highway 116 (MR) Replace approximately 
850 ft of main line.  $280,000    


  
Main St   (MR) Replace approximately 800 ft 
of mainline along Main St. $180,000    


  


Upper Summit Tank - Construct a storage 
tank with a nominal capacity of 
approximately 120,000 gallons at the 
District–owned site on McLane Avenue. 
Project to include relocation/ construction of 
the existing hydro-pneumatic pump station. $490,000  


wait for 
Dubrava 
Development
? 


  
Total Approximate Cost of Future, 
Unapproved Projects $1,410,000    


 





		Item V-D - RES 17-20 - 2018-24 Capital Improvement Program

		Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 



		Item V-D.1 RES 17-20 -- Adopting the Revised 2018-2024 Capital Improvement Program






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: GUERNEWOOD PARK RESORT WATER SERVICE REQUEST TO 
THE DISTRICT  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 
regarding the Guernewood Park Resort request for water service from the District and 
provide direction to staff.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none at this time.  


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Guernewood Park Resort is a proposed hotel/motel with a reported 120 rooms and 
a restaurant which is located next to the Dubrava Condominiums and Hulburt Creek in 
Guernewood Park.   
 
At the October meeting I reported that we had agreed with the consultant Jean 
Kapolchok that we could agree to proceed with the modeling needed to determine the 
District's ability to serve this project if the Project pays for this modeling work through 
an agreement with the District.  We provided an agreement but, at the time of the 
November meeting, we had not received a signed agreement and check, which would 
allow the work to proceed.  I contacted Ms. Kapolchok about this and she responded 
that she would look into it.  We hadn't received any information prior to the November 
meeting.   
 
On November 9, 2017, I received an email from Ms. Kapolchok that contained a revised 
agreement.  There were two issues with the revisions: 
 


 The revised agreement included an added indemnity clause on the District.  The 
agreement the District sent Ms. Kapolchok included an indemnity clause against 
the project proponent.  Public agencies do not typically agree to mutual 
indemnity with private development as private development can spur various 
kinds of legal issues.   


 
 The revised agreement proposed an initial deposit of $10,000 for modelling work 


that was estimated (proposed) by Coastland to cost approximately $42,000.  The 
original agreement required the full proposed cost up front with return of any 
unused funds.  Having incremental deposits would be problematic for the District 
and completion of the modeling work as Coastland would have to track costs, 
inform the District when a deposit amount was being approached, etc.  


 







Monte Rio Recreation and Parks District Proposal 2  
September 7, 2017 


I responded to Ms. Kapolchok that these two revisions were not acceptable on 
November 13.  I have not heard back.   
  
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 7, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  2018 ORGANIZATION MEETING / BOARD ELECTIONS   


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Elect Board officers for the coming year.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District policy requires the election of officers for the coming year at the 
December Board meeting unless there is a change in the Board due to the 
November election.  District policy states: "5000.50 Annual Organizational 
Meeting: The Board of Directors shall hold an annual organizational meeting 
at its regular meeting in December, except in years when new Directors are 
elected to the Board at the November regular election and seated after the 
regular December meeting.  In those years, the annual organization meeting 
will be held at the regular January meeting.  At this annual meeting the 
Board will select and appoint officers, as described in sections 4050.11 
through 4050.13, from among its members to serve during the coming 
calendar year."  Sections 4005.11 through 4050.13 describe the positions of 
President, Vice President, and Financial Coordinator.   
 
This year there are no new Directors to be seated after the December 
meeting, thus our elections occur at the December meeting.   
 
 
 





		Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 - Pearl Harbor Day!  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in October were 21,884 units (50.2 AF, (Monte 
Rio cycle) and production was 60.1 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production 
this month were higher (44.7 AF and 50.5 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage has 
somewhat stabilized system-wide, but it's higher than we want.     Figure 1 shows sales, 
production and % difference since 2008 separately for the Guerneville and Monte Rio 
systems.     


 
2. Leaks:  In October we had 9 total leaks and spent 74 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more than October one year 
ago (4 and 20).    Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leaks line 
as well.     


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall: Rain picked up in November.  We're below last year but nearer 


average.   Figure 3 shows monthly rainfall compared to prior years, the long-term average 
and the recent average.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  My understanding is that the appraisal has been done a second 


time and Open Space is reviewing it. 
 
5. Monte Rio Trails Project:  No new information on this. 
  
6. 2017 CIP: Notice of Completion on the agenda for this meeting. 
 
7. In-House Construction Projects: 3 in-house construction projects were reported for 


November: upgraded service and fixed leak on Cherry Street (4 man-hours), bollards 
installed and painted at Old Middle Schoolhouse  (8.5 man-hours), abandoned 185 feet of 
3/4" galvanized line and replaced 2 services with poly (114.5 man-hours).  


 
8. Regional Fires Impacts:  No new information on the regional fires.     
 
9.  Gantt Chart:   The CIP is in the Gannt Chart for December.  Water Rights as well; I don't 


expect to hear anything on this for a while as it's complicated, many comments were made 
(I understand), including by the State Board which needs an adequate EIR for their process.       


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
November 2, 2017 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


S
a


le
s 


an
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
s


t


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
November 2, 2017 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


Sep-
17


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
ct
ob


er


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


Dryest (1977)


2016


07-17 Avg


2017


2018


-


 
 
 







 
Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Budget Preparation
        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Phase 2&3 Award of 
Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


·        USDA Bond


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: December 7, 2017 - Pearl Harbor Day! 



